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·1· ·she was terminated?

·2· · · · A.· ·By -- by Gould?· And I'm sorry.· By Tim

·3· ·Storey when he fired her?· I don't know what Tim

·4· ·Storey told her.

·5· · · · Q.· ·What is your understanding as you sit

·6· ·here today as to why she was fired, if any?

·7· · · · A.· ·The CEO was dissatisfied with her

·8· ·performance in the office.· I think it was

·9· ·specifically a case, from my understanding, which

10· ·can be wrong, that there was -- Jim Junior

11· ·mentioned to me, told me, that there was an

12· ·attachment for an email and he said, Send out this

13· ·to Ellen and Margaret Cotter, and Linda Pham

14· ·attached the wrong email attachment.· And it

15· ·proved, I guess, embarrassing to Jim Junior, the

16· ·CEO, and he had a notion, from my speaking with

17· ·him, that she may have well done it on purpose.

18· · · · Q.· ·Three lines from the bottom of Mr. Kane's

19· ·March 1 email to you, it says:

20· · · · · · ·According to Ellen, Craig is also on

21· ·some, quote, team, closed sub quote.

22· · · · · · ·Do you see that?

23· · · · A.· ·Yes.

24· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any understanding as to what

25· ·that means?
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·1· · · · A.· ·When I read it, my notion was that there

·2· ·was some talk whether Craig would stay or go or

·3· ·become -- have a contract and extended services as

·4· ·a consultant, and Ellen says Craig is on the team.

·5· ·I took that to mean that Craig Tompkins is going to

·6· ·stay with the company in whatever capacity Junior

·7· ·had been speaking with him about and that Bill

·8· ·Ellis is desirous of Craig being terminated so he's

·9· ·the only attorney for the company.

10· · · · Q.· ·There came a time when you heard or

11· ·learned or were told that one or both of Ellen and

12· ·Margaret wished to execute options they held

13· ·personally to acquire Class B voting stock;

14· ·correct?

15· · · · A.· ·Uh-huh.

16· · · · Q.· ·You need to answer audibly.

17· · · · A.· ·Yes.· Sorry, yes.

18· · · · Q.· ·And at that time, or any time thereafter,

19· ·were you ever told or did you ever learn why they

20· ·wished to do so?

21· · · · A.· ·Yes.

22· · · · Q.· ·What did you learn and when?

23· · · · A.· ·When, I'm not exactly sure.· But why was,

24· ·I guess the estate held that and options -- the

25· ·stock was up and it would be a good economic
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·1· ·financial time to exercise those options due to the

·2· ·stock price.· And she wanted to exercise that to

·3· ·capture the financial gain.· And because there were

·4· ·time limits associated with them, she felt that if

·5· ·the stock price went down, she would be accused of

·6· ·mismanagement of the trust assets -- not the trust.

·7· ·The estate assets.· That's what she told me.

·8· · · · Q.· ·"She" being Ellen?

·9· · · · A.· ·I'm sorry.· Ellen Cotter told me that.

10· · · · Q.· ·When?

11· · · · A.· ·I would think it was about maybe three

12· ·weeks before we -- or four weeks, three or

13· ·four weeks before we approved them.· I don't

14· ·remember off the top of my head the date on which

15· ·we approved those.

16· · · · Q.· ·Do you remember the time frame in which

17· ·they were approved?

18· · · · A.· ·"Time frame" meaning what year?

19· · · · Q.· ·What year, what month, what quarter, that

20· ·kind of thing.

21· · · · A.· ·I think it was like 2015.· I don't --

22· ·honestly, I just don't remember the date.  I

23· ·remember the incident.

24· · · · Q.· ·Now, are you referring to the supposed

25· ·option to acquire 100,000 shares of Class B voting
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·1· ·stock?

·2· · · · A.· ·Is what that you're talking about?

·3· · · · Q.· ·Well, I started with a question about

·4· ·being held personally by Margaret and Ellen but I

·5· ·understood you --

·6· · · · A.· ·B shares held.· I'm sorry, I

·7· ·misunderstood your question.

·8· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Let me try it again.

·9· · · · · · ·Did there come a time when you learned

10· ·that Ellen and/or Margaret wanted to exercise

11· ·options to acquire -- options they held personally

12· ·to acquire Class B voting stock?

13· · · · A.· ·Yes.

14· · · · Q.· ·When was that?

15· · · · A.· ·I'm not sure.

16· · · · Q.· ·And what were you told and what did you

17· ·learn, if anything, about why they wanted to

18· ·exercise options they held personally to acquire

19· ·Class B voting stock?

20· · · · A.· ·They didn't give me an answer.· They

21· ·didn't give me an answer and I didn't ask the

22· ·question.· It was their options.· They wanted to

23· ·exercise it.

24· · · · Q.· ·Did you have any sense or surmise at the

25· ·time why they were seeking to exercise options to
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·1· ·acquire Class B voting stock?

·2· · · · A.· ·For their personal account?· No.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Did you have any conversations with

·4· ·anybody about that?

·5· · · · A.· ·The comp committee talked about that.

·6· · · · Q.· ·And the comp committee was you, Mr. Kane

·7· ·and Mr. Storey; right?

·8· · · · A.· ·Tim Storey, yes.

·9· · · · Q.· ·What was the comp committee discussion

10· ·about that?

11· · · · A.· ·Whether they could do it, and we've done

12· ·it -- I think Tim Storey's comment was we've done

13· ·this in the past; he saw no reason why we shouldn't

14· ·be able to do it.

15· · · · Q.· ·Did there come a time when you heard or

16· ·learned or were told that either or both Ellen

17· ·Cotter and Margaret Cotter sought to exercise a

18· ·supposed option to acquire 100,000 shares of Class

19· ·B voting stock?

20· · · · A.· ·In the estate or the trust?· I mean, not

21· ·for their personal account.

22· · · · Q.· ·Acting as -- sorry.· I'll do a complete

23· ·question that answers yours.

24· · · · A.· ·Okay.

25· · · · Q.· ·Did there come a time when you heard or
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·1· ·learned or were told that Ellen and/or Margaret,

·2· ·purporting to act as co-executors of the estate,

·3· ·sought to exercise a supposed option to acquire

·4· ·100,000 shares of Class B voting stock?

·5· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·6· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Object to the form of the

·7· ·question.

·8· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·9· · · · Q.· ·And what did you learn and when did you

10· ·first learn it?

11· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· I will just -- if you learned it

12· ·from an attorney in the course of giving or

13· ·receiving legal advice, I'll instruct you not to

14· ·answer.· But otherwise you can answer the question.

15· · · · THE WITNESS:· I learned about it first from

16· ·Ellen, saying she wanted to do that.

17· ·BY MR. KRUM:

18· · · · Q.· ·Did she call you?

19· · · · A.· ·I think I was in the office.

20· · · · Q.· ·What did she say to you about why she

21· ·wanted to do that, if anything?

22· · · · A.· ·To exercise the options because they had

23· ·a limited time life to them.· The stock price was

24· ·up and she felt that if the stock were to go

25· ·down -- stock price were to go down, she would
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·1· ·breach her duties as a trustee for the estate by

·2· ·not monetizing that asset.

·3· · · · Q.· ·And you're talking about the estate

·4· ·acquiring 100,000 shares of Class B voting stock?

·5· · · · A.· ·Exercising the options on 100,000 shares,

·6· ·yes.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Do you recall how she proposed to pay for

·8· ·that?

·9· · · · A.· ·Her notion was they would use the

10· ·nonvoting stock in the estate as the collateral to

11· ·pay for it.

12· · · · Q.· ·Can you explain how it is that trading

13· ·one class of stock for another is protecting some

14· ·sort of economic investment?

15· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; calls for a legal

16· ·opinion and lack of foundation, that it's not the

17· ·opinion he expressed.

18· · · · MR. KRUM:· Understood.· I'm asking if he

19· ·understood -- if he can explain what she said, what

20· ·his understanding of that is.

21· · · · Q.· ·Go ahead.

22· · · · A.· ·My understanding of her taking one class

23· ·of stock to pay for another?· One class of stock is

24· ·nonvoting.· You sell it; you get money.· Money is

25· ·fungible.· You use that to pay for another class of
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·1· ·stock.· I didn't -- I didn't see the

·2· ·differentiating -- or the conflict.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Did you think it made sense when she said

·4· ·to you in the office that she wanted to exercise a

·5· ·supposed option to acquire 100,000 shares of

·6· ·Class B voting stock and pay for it with Class A

·7· ·nonvoting stock, because doing so made good

·8· ·economic sense, or whatever words she used?

·9· · · · MR. SWANIS:· Objection; form.

10· ·BY MR. KRUM:

11· · · · Q.· ·Did you -- did you agree with her?

12· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Object to the form of the

13· ·question.

14· · · · THE WITNESS:· It wasn't mine to agree or not

15· ·to agree whether that was -- she was the trustee.

16· ·That was her decision; it wasn't my decision.

17· ·BY MR. KRUM:

18· · · · Q.· ·I'm asking what you thought about what

19· ·she said to you.

20· · · · A.· ·My personal opinion?· It didn't matter,

21· ·my personal opinion.· I didn't give her my personal

22· ·opinion.· I didn't state a personal opinion.

23· · · · Q.· ·What did you think?

24· · · · A.· ·I don't -- candidly, I don't have enough

25· ·facts about what's going on in the estate, the need
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·1· ·of money, what's there, what's happening, where

·2· ·it's going.· She said this is what she wanted to

·3· ·do.· She was in charge of it, and it seemed okay to

·4· ·me.

·5· · · · Q.· ·And did you give any thought to what

·6· ·reason, if any, might cause or prompt Ellen and/or

·7· ·Margaret to acquire Class B voting stock?

·8· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; calls for

·9· ·speculation.

10· · · · · · ·You can answer.

11· · · · THE WITNESS:· Repeating myself, she told me it

12· ·was the economics associated with the stock had

13· ·gone up.· The options have a finite life, and she

14· ·expressed her concern that if she didn't do it and

15· ·the stock went down, she could be faulted for not

16· ·overseeing those assets properly.

17· ·BY MR. KRUM:

18· · · · Q.· ·What was the expiration of the supposed

19· ·option?

20· · · · A.· ·I have no idea.

21· · · · Q.· ·Did you ever learn that?

22· · · · A.· ·No.· Again, it's not my asset; it's her

23· ·asset.

24· · · · Q.· ·Did you ask her -- well, what did you do

25· ·to ascertain it was her asset?
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·1· · · · A.· ·I informed myself through legal counsel.

·2· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Don't -- don't disclose the

·3· ·communications with legal counsel.· You can simply

·4· ·say you conferred with legal counsel.

·5· · · · THE WITNESS:· I conferred with legal counsel.

·6· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·7· · · · Q.· ·Who?

·8· · · · A.· ·Craig Tompkins, Greenberg Traurig and

·9· ·Bill Ellis.

10· · · · Q.· ·When did you confer with each of them?

11· · · · A.· ·There were emails about this particular

12· ·thing, and Tim Storey wanted -- if I -- as I

13· ·recall, he wanted a legal written opinion or

14· ·something like that.· And I didn't think there was

15· ·a question that the shares were within the estate,

16· ·and anyway, Ed Kane agreed, we should -- we should

17· ·make sure we're on a firm basis that they have it

18· ·and can do -- can exercise this.

19· · · · · · ·So I inquired, and to my knowledge, Ed

20· ·Kane inquired, and we both became of the opinion

21· ·that it was an asset of the estate and they could

22· ·exercise this transaction.

23· · · · Q.· ·Did either you or Mr. Kane confer with

24· ·anybody that -- well, strike that.

25· · · · · · ·What did -- what did Ed Kane do, if you
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·1· ·know --

·2· · · · A.· ·He voted for it.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· What did Ed Kane do, if anything,

·4· ·to seek advice of counsel?

·5· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; foundation.

·6· · · · · · ·Whatever you know.

·7· · · · THE WITNESS:· I'm pretty sure he talked to

·8· ·Craig Tompkins as well, legal counsel.· I don't

·9· ·know if he spoke to Bill Ellis.· And beyond that, I

10· ·don't know what Ed Kane did.

11· ·BY MR. KRUM:

12· · · · Q.· ·Your communications were with what

13· ·lawyer?

14· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· You okay?

15· · · · THE WITNESS:· Went down the wrong way.

16· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Need a minute?

17· · · · THE WITNESS:· Just 30 seconds.

18· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Why don't we go off the camera

19· ·so you don't need to have a coughing --

20· · · · MR. KRUM:· Yeah, we'll go off the record for a

21· ·couple of minutes.· That's fine.

22· · · · THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· We are off the record.· The

23· ·time is 4:50.

24· · · · · · ·(Recess.)

25· · · · THE VIDEOGRAPHER:· We are on the record.· The
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·1· ·time is 4:59.

·2· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·3· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Adams, referring to your testimony a

·4· ·few minutes ago that you consulted with Greenberg

·5· ·Traurig, with whom did you speak or communicate?

·6· · · · A.· ·I didn't speak to anyone.· It was a

·7· ·written communication.

·8· · · · Q.· ·From Greenberg Traurig?

·9· · · · A.· ·Yes.

10· · · · Q.· ·To you?

11· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Vague as to the "you."· You,

12· ·Mr. Adams or --

13· · · · MR. KRUM:· Yeah, that's what I'm asking.

14· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Okay.

15· · · · THE WITNESS:· No, it wasn't to me.· I'm not --

16· ·I don't -- at the top, I don't know who it was to.

17· ·BY MR. KRUM:

18· · · · Q.· ·How did you come to have it?

19· · · · A.· ·It was given to me by -- the counsel of

20· ·the company gave it to me.

21· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Ellis or Mr. Tompkins?

22· · · · A.· ·I don't know -- one of them, yes, gave it

23· ·to me.

24· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And what was the subject matter of

25· ·this document?

000201

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 219
·1· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· General subject matter.

·2· · · · THE WITNESS:· Ownership of the voting stock.

·3· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·4· · · · Q.· ·Was the subject matter of the memo -- did

·5· ·it address the subject of who had the right to vote

·6· ·certain stock at or in connection with the annual

·7· ·shareholders meeting?

·8· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· I'm going to object to that

·9· ·question to the extent I think it's a little --

10· · · · MR. KRUM:· It's not what they said.· It's a

11· ·particular subject matter.· It's different -- it

12· ·may or may not be a different subject matter than

13· ·what he just said.· And he may know not know, but

14· ·I'm entitled to the subject matter.

15· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Could I just have the subject

16· ·matter read back to me again.

17· · · · MR. KRUM:· Sure.· Go ahead.

18· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· At some point it becomes so

19· ·specific that it does become a disclosure.· You

20· ·know what -- the point I'm making, so I just want

21· ·to make --

22· · · · MR. KRUM:· I understand.

23· · · · · · ·(Record read as follows:

24· · · · · · ·"Q.· Was the subject matter of the

25· · · · · · ·memo -- did it address the subject of
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·1· · · · · · ·who had the right to vote certain stock

·2· · · · · · ·at or in connection with the annual

·3· · · · · · ·shareholders meeting?")

·4· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· I'll let you answer the question

·5· ·if you know.

·6· · · · THE WITNESS:· I'm not sure if it specified

·7· ·that.

·8· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·9· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· But you relied on this particular

10· ·Greenberg Traurig memo in connection with making

11· ·the decision to vote as a member of the

12· ·compensation committee to allow Ellen and Margaret

13· ·Cotter, as executors, to exercise the supposed

14· ·option to acquire 100,000 shares of Class B voting

15· ·stock; is that right?

16· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection to the extent that

17· ·misstates his prior testimony.

18· · · · · · ·You can answer.

19· · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes, in addition to Craig

20· ·Tompkins and Bill Ellis.

21· ·BY MR. KRUM:

22· · · · Q.· ·Now, to your knowledge, were -- are any

23· ·of those lawyers -- did any of those lawyers

24· ·possess any expertise in trust and estate matters?

25· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; lack of foundation.
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·1· · · · · · ·You can answer if you know.

·2· · · · THE WITNESS:· I have no knowledge about that.

·3· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And I don't want to know what was

·5· ·said, but was there any discussion in the Greenberg

·6· ·Traurig memo of what you understood to be trust and

·7· ·estate issues?

·8· · · · MR. SWANIS:· Objection; form.

·9· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Join.

10· · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes, there were some --

11· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· You can answer yes or no.

12· · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.

13· ·BY MR. KRUM:

14· · · · Q.· ·And in terms of your thinking, not what

15· ·any lawyer said in a memo, did whatever discussion

16· ·there was that you understood to be of trust and

17· ·estate matters bear upon your decision-making?

18· · · · A.· ·I'm sorry.· Would you say that question

19· ·again.

20· · · · Q.· ·Sure.· I'll ask it a little differently.

21· · · · · · ·Did you rely on a portion of the

22· ·Greenberg Traurig memo that you understood

23· ·addressed trust and estate matters in making your

24· ·decision to vote in favor of allowing Ellen and

25· ·Margaret Cotter to exercise the supposed option to
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·1· ·acquire 100,000 shares of Class B voting stock?

·2· · · · MR. SWANIS:· Objection; form.

·3· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Object to the form of the

·4· ·question.

·5· · · · THE WITNESS:· I don't remember specifically

·6· ·what part of the memo I relied upon.· But in total,

·7· ·the global read of it, I relied on that.

·8· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·9· · · · Q.· ·What was the date of the memo?

10· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; best evidence.

11· · · · · · ·If you remember.

12· · · · THE WITNESS:· Honestly, I have not the

13· ·slightest idea about that.· It was before this

14· ·incident came up.

15· ·BY MR. KRUM:

16· · · · Q.· ·By "this incident," you're referring to

17· ·what?

18· · · · A.· ·I'm sorry.· Exercising the options.

19· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Do you recall, Mr. Adams, that

20· ·the -- that Ellen and Margaret Cotter attempted to

21· ·exercise the supposed 100,000-share option in April

22· ·of 2015?

23· · · · A.· ·I don't recall when they first exercised

24· ·that.· I thought -- I thought it was later than

25· ·that, but anyway, I don't know when they exercised
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·1· ·it -- I don't know the date, is the answer.

·2· · · · Q.· ·Do you recall that there was some -- that

·3· ·they also tried to exercise the supposed

·4· ·100,000-share option in September of 2015?

·5· · · · A.· ·2015, September?· The 100,000 options

·6· ·we're talking about, voting stock?

·7· · · · Q.· ·Yes.

·8· · · · A.· ·In September?

·9· · · · Q.· ·Yes.

10· · · · A.· ·That would seem about the right time.

11· · · · Q.· ·Do you recall any discussion, in or about

12· ·the beginning of September 2015, about whether the

13· ·supposed 100,000-share option had expired or was

14· ·about to expire?

15· · · · A.· ·No.

16· · · · Q.· ·Do you recall any discussion at any point

17· ·in time about the expiration or possible expiration

18· ·of the supposed 100,000-share option?

19· · · · MR. SWANIS:· Objection to form.

20· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Join.

21· · · · THE WITNESS:· None that I recall.

22· ·BY MR. KRUM:

23· · · · Q.· ·Did you ever hear or learn or were you

24· ·ever told that Ellen and/or Margaret Cotter sought

25· ·to exercise the supposed 100,000-share option, by
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·1· ·which I mean for Class B voting stock, because they

·2· ·were concerned that Mark Cuban and others could

·3· ·prevail at a vote at the 2015 annual shareholders

·4· ·meeting?

·5· · · · A.· ·I'm not aware of that.

·6· · · · Q.· ·You never heard that?

·7· · · · A.· ·That Margaret thought -- I mean, excuse

·8· ·me, that Ellen thought this?

·9· · · · Q.· ·Or was concerned about it.

10· · · · A.· ·I don't know what she's concerned about,

11· ·but it was never brought to my attention about

12· ·that.

13· · · · · · ·(Mr. Rhow left the deposition.)

14· · · · THE WITNESS:· I think she was concerned --

15· ·yeah, she was concerned about Mark Cuban, I know

16· ·that.

17· ·BY MR. KRUM:

18· · · · Q.· ·How do you know that?

19· · · · A.· ·She told me.

20· · · · Q.· ·When?

21· · · · A.· ·During the summer, I would say.

22· · · · Q.· ·Summer of 2015?

23· · · · A.· ·I'm sorry.· The summer of 2015, yes.

24· · · · Q.· ·What was the context of that discussion?

25· · · · A.· ·I encouraged her to go meet with him or
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·1· ·his representative, introduce herself and talk to

·2· ·him.· He's a shareholder; she should know him.

·3· · · · Q.· ·What prompted you to have that

·4· ·communication with her?

·5· · · · A.· ·I can't -- I can't remember a specific

·6· ·incident that triggered that.

·7· · · · Q.· ·Have you ever heard or learned or been

·8· ·told of any possible circumstances under which Mark

·9· ·Cuban and other holders of the Class B voting stock

10· ·could possibly carry the vote at the annual

11· ·meeting -- the annual shareholders meeting in 2015?

12· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; form and foundation.

13· · · · · · ·And I'll instruct the witness, if you've

14· ·heard it from a lawyer, I'll instruct you not to

15· ·answer.· If you've heard it from someone else, you

16· ·can answer the question.

17· · · · THE WITNESS:· I don't know how mathematically

18· ·that can happen.· So I mean, there's always

19· ·concern.

20· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· His question is whether you

21· ·heard that from somebody, I think.

22· · · · THE WITNESS:· Perhaps.· I don't remember who.

23· ·It wasn't a big thing, a big notion in my mind.

24· ·But have I ever heard that?· Perhaps, yes.

25· ·///
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·1· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·2· · · · Q.· ·What's your best recollection of how or

·3· ·when you perhaps heard that?

·4· · · · A.· ·I just talked to people around the

·5· ·office.· It wasn't anything specific.

·6· · · · Q.· ·Did you ever hear or learn or were you

·7· ·ever told that the Class B voting stock held by the

·8· ·Cotter trust could not be counted or might not be

·9· ·counted if attempted to be voted at the 2015 annual

10· ·shareholders' meeting?

11· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· I'm going to admonish you, if

12· ·you heard that from some lawyer, I'm going to

13· ·instruct you not to answer.

14· ·BY MR. KRUM:

15· · · · Q.· ·Exclude from any answer you give me,

16· ·Mr. Adams, anything you learned from any lawyer.

17· · · · A.· ·No.

18· · · · Q.· ·How about the 2016 shareholders meeting?

19· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Object to the form of the

20· ·question.

21· · · · THE WITNESS:· That was the 2016 meeting.· You

22· ·mean the one that happened in December 2015?

23· ·BY MR. KRUM:

24· · · · Q.· ·No, the one that's scheduled to occur in

25· ·June of 2016.
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·1· · · · A.· ·No, I haven't heard that.

·2· · · · Q.· ·You're aware that RDI Class A nonvoting

·3· ·stock is liquid, freely tradeable, there's a

·4· ·market?

·5· · · · A.· ·Yes, yes.

·6· · · · Q.· ·And what is your understanding with

·7· ·respect to the liquidity of RDI Class B voting

·8· ·stock?

·9· · · · A.· ·Truthfully, I know it's less liquid.  I

10· ·don't know the amount.

11· · · · Q.· ·As someone whose career includes stocks

12· ·and bonds, if I was listening earlier today, did it

13· ·occur to you when Ellen gave the explanation you

14· ·described for why she sought to acquire Class B

15· ·voting stock with the Class A nonvoting stock, that

16· ·all she needed to do was liquidate the Class A

17· ·stock?

18· · · · A.· ·Did that occur to me?

19· · · · Q.· ·Yes.

20· · · · A.· ·Yes, that's how she was going to pay for

21· ·it.

22· · · · Q.· ·No, no.· Let me try it again.

23· · · · A.· ·Okay.

24· · · · Q.· ·Did you ask yourself or did you wonder

25· ·if, given the explanation that she gave that you
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·1· ·described, why it was that she wasn't simply

·2· ·selling into the market Class A nonvoting stock

·3· ·instead of using that liquid stock to purchase

·4· ·illiquid voting stock?

·5· · · · A.· ·We have in the past purchased stock from

·6· ·people within the company, including Cotters, and

·7· ·it's a practice that's not uncommon for us to use

·8· ·that practice.

·9· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any understanding as to why

10· ·that's not what she did at the time?

11· · · · MR. SWANIS:· Objection; form.

12· · · · THE WITNESS:· Why she didn't sell the

13· ·nonvoting stock in the marketplace and then pay for

14· ·it?

15· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection.

16· ·BY MR. KRUM:

17· · · · Q.· ·Do you have any understanding as to why

18· ·she didn't simply sell the nonvoting stock, either

19· ·in the marketplace or back to the company?

20· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· Objection; form and foundation.

21· · · · THE WITNESS:· No.

22· ·BY MR. KRUM:

23· · · · Q.· ·Do you understand that following the

24· ·termination of Jim Cotter Junior as president and

25· ·CEO, Ellen took the position that he was required
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·1· ·to resign as a director?

·2· · · · A.· ·Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· ·Did you or the company obtain any legal

·4· ·advice with respect to that position?

·5· · · · A.· ·Can I answer that?

·6· · · · Q.· ·It's a yes or no.

·7· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· You can answer yes or no.

·8· · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.

·9· ·BY MR. KRUM:

10· · · · Q.· ·And did you personally receive it?

11· · · · A.· ·Yes.

12· · · · Q.· ·From whom?

13· · · · MR. TAYBACK:· The identity of the lawyers is

14· ·fine.

15· · · · MR. KRUM:· Yeah.

16· · · · THE WITNESS:· Akin Gump.· Let me see.· Larry

17· ·Levien and perhaps Frank Reddick as well.

18· ·BY MR. KRUM:

19· · · · Q.· ·When was that provided?

20· · · · A.· ·I'm going to estimate maybe a month

21· ·before Jim Junior's termination.

22· · · · Q.· ·Did you read Mr. Cotter's executive

23· ·employment agreement prior to his termination?

24· · · · A.· ·Yes, I did.

25· · · · Q.· ·Did you discuss it with anyone?
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·1· · · · · · · "Question:· Did you ever reach a

·2· · · · · · · conclusion at any time in 2015,

·3· · · · · · · conclusion or conclusions at any

·4· · · · · · · time in 2015, about where any

·5· · · · · · · class B voting stock that was

·6· · · · · · · either owned legally and/or

·7· · · · · · · beneficially by Jim Cotter, Sr.,

·8· · · · · · · or a trust that he had controlled

·9· · · · · · · as trustee was held, whether it

10· · · · · · · was in a trust, a voting trust, an

11· · · · · · · estate or someplace else?")

12· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Same objections.· Vague and

13· ·lacks foundation.

14· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I left that -- I think I

15· ·had conversations with attorneys over at -- and

16· ·asked for an opinion as to the ability to vote

17· ·certain shares.

18· ·BY MR. KRUM:

19· · · · ·Q.· ·So, is it your testimony that you came

20· ·to no conclusion independent of any conclusion

21· ·offered to you by attorneys?

22· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·And was any conclusion offered to you by

24· ·any attorneys?

25· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· And that's a -- that's a
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·1· ·"yes" or "no" question.

·2· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· Yeah.

·3· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Say that again.

·4· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·5· · · · ·Q.· ·Did any attorneys proffer to you any

·6· ·conclusions regarding the subject of who had the

·7· ·right to vote any class B voting stock?· Yes or no?

·8· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·When did that happen?

10· · · · ·A.· ·I think -- I think in September of 2015.

11· · · · ·Q.· ·And who was the attorney or who were the

12· ·attorneys?

13· · · · ·A.· ·I think there was an opinion from Neal

14· ·Brockmeyer -- Brockmeyer, which he sent to the

15· ·independent committee.· I think that was in there.

16· ·And there was corporate counsel in Nevada.· And

17· ·there was opinions from them.

18· · · · ·Q.· ·Corporate counsel being Greenberg

19· ·Traurig?

20· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·And there were -- there was more than

22· ·one opinion from them?

23· · · · ·A.· ·I can only recall one.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·And the one that you recall, Mr. Kane,

25· ·when was that provided approximately?

000215

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 96
·1· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· And again he's only asking

·2· ·for the date.· Don't get into the substance of any

·3· ·legal advice.

·4· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· No.· That would have been

·5· ·in September of 2015.

·6· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·To what use, if any, did you put the

·8· ·Greenberg Traurig memo or opinion?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·To what use?

10· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Objection.· Vague.

11· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· Can you -- hang on for

12· ·just one second.· I need to counsel --

13· · · · · · · (Off-the-record discussion.)

14· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· Gentlemen, it does not --

15· ·indisputably does not call for the disclosure of

16· ·privileged information.· I have not asked --

17· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· It's the next question.

18· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· -- Mr. Kane what the

19· ·substance was and I'm taking this at, as you can see

20· ·it, nice small incremental steps so that he doesn't

21· ·get ahead of us and speak to that.

22· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· We appreciate that.· It's

23· ·this question, though -- I don't want to say how he

24· ·could answer it and not take the next step.

25· · · · · · · But if he goes -- he gives the wrong, I
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·1· ·think we have now gone into that.· We've crossed the

·2· ·line.

·3· · · · · · · I mean I think that you've done a fine

·4· ·job.· I'm not -- I'm not in any way critiquing how

·5· ·you proceed --

·6· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· Look, I wasn't asking to be

·7· ·credited or blamed.· I just want to move the process

·8· ·forward.

·9· · · · · · · So let's do this.· Let's have the court

10· ·reporter read the question for him.

11· · · · · · · I'm going to make sure -- and he's done

12· ·a good job of allowing you to interpose objections

13· ·if I ask another question that you think calls for

14· ·privileged information.

15· · · · · · · So let's just do it the way we've been

16· ·doing it one step at a time.

17· · · · · · · Can you read the question for him,

18· ·please.

19· · · · · · · (Whereupon the question was read

20· · · · · · · as follows:

21· · · · · · · "Question:· To what use, if any,

22· · · · · · · did you put the Greenberg Traurig

23· · · · · · · memo or opinion?")

24· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· I'll object as vague.

25· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· I'm going to object.  I
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·1· ·think we're now starting to invade the

·2· ·attorney-client privilege.· Because you're

·3· ·reading -- you're asking him did he read it?

·4· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· I'm asking him to what use,

·5· ·if any, did he put it.· Not what it said.

·6· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·7· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Kane, directing your attention to

·8· ·the Greenberg Traurig memo or opinion, to what use,

·9· ·if any, did you put that?

10· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· I'm going to object to

11· ·that, because I do think this invades the

12· ·attorney-client privilege.

13· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Join.

14· ·BY MR. KRUM:

15· · · · ·Q.· ·Go ahead, sir.

16· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· I don't --

17· ·BY MR. KRUM:

18· · · · ·Q.· ·Don't tell me about the substance.· Just

19· ·tell me, did you rely on it for any purpose?

20· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· That's where the problem

21· ·comes, Mark.

22· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· Well, it might be a problem

23· ·for you guys.

24· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· It's not a problem for

25· ·me.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· The answer --

·2· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· It depends on what -- it

·3· ·depends on what position the company -- or that

·4· ·Mr. Kane wants to take.· And that's -- that's what

·5· ·I'm -- that's where I think this is an issue at this

·6· ·point in time.

·7· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· It's not an issue.

·8· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· Yes, it is.

·9· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· It may be, but --

10· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· I'll tell you what, we'll

11· ·deal with it down the road.· I'm going to tell him

12· ·-- I'm going instruct him to not answer based upon

13· ·--

14· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· On what basis?

15· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· -- the privilege.· Just

16· ·what I just said.

17· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· Okay.· Can we mark this part

18· ·of the transcript.· We're going to come back to it

19· ·presumably over the lunch break.

20· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· Yeah.· And I'll visit

21· ·this with Marshall over the break, but at this point

22· ·in time we're going to assert the attorney-client

23· ·privilege.

24· ·BY MR. KRUM:

25· · · · ·Q.· ·Mr. Kane, who provided the Greenberg

000219

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 100
·1· ·Traurig document to you; that is, the opinion to

·2· ·which you have just referred?

·3· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· You can answer that

·4· ·question.

·5· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I'm trying --

·6· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Again, don't get into the

·7· ·substance.· Just --

·8· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· No.· I understand.· And my

·9· ·question is I don't know that I can answer his

10· ·question in the sense that I may have received it

11· ·directly from Greenberg.

12· ·BY MR. KRUM:

13· · · · ·Q.· ·Did you ask them to provide it to you?

14· · · · ·A.· ·I think I did, yes.

15· · · · ·Q.· ·With whom did you communicate?· Not what

16· ·was communicated, just with whom did you

17· ·communicate?

18· · · · ·A.· ·I don't recall whether it was Mark or

19· ·whether it was someone else in the firm that I

20· ·communicate with.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·Was it orally or in writing?

22· · · · ·A.· ·I don't recall.

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Was anyone else party or privy to that

24· ·communication?

25· · · · ·A.· ·I think Guy Adams was.· That's -- he
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·1· ·would have been if I was, because it was a

·2· ·compensation committee question.· And Tim Storey may

·3· ·well have been.

·4· · · · ·Q.· ·And it is your best recollection --

·5· ·strike that.

·6· · · · · · · Is it your best recollection as you sit

·7· ·here today, Mr. Kane, that the first time you had

·8· ·communications of the type you're describing now was

·9· ·in September of 2015?

10· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Objection.· Vague and lacks

11· ·foundation.

12· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· There may have been some

13· ·communication with them earlier also.

14· ·BY MR. KRUM:

15· · · · ·Q.· ·Earlier being when?· Either in time or

16· ·relative to any other particular events that you

17· ·recall?

18· · · · ·A.· ·It was a particular event having to do

19· ·with the exercise of voting share options by

20· ·Margaret and Ellen Cotter.

21· · · · ·Q.· ·And approximately when was that?

22· · · · ·A.· ·I don't recall.· I think -- I don't

23· ·recall.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you recall it relative to any other

25· ·developments or events?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·Well, there was a fight between Jimmy

·2· ·and his sisters, and I did not on behalf of the

·3· ·committee want to get in the middle of it.

·4· · · · · · · So, I required -- I required an opinion

·5· ·of counsel.

·6· · · · · · · I didn't care who won.· It's just that

·7· ·we wanted to do the right thing, the committee did.

·8· · · · ·Q.· ·The compensation committee?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·Right.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·With respect to requests by Ellen and

11· ·Margaret to exercise options?

12· · · · ·A.· ·That was one issue, yes.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·What were the other issues?

14· · · · ·A.· ·There was the issue of exercising the

15· ·options that were granted to Jim Cotter, Sr.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·What was the issue there or what were

17· ·the issues, as best you can recall?

18· · · · ·A.· ·Mr. Cotter, Jr., was saying those

19· ·options belong to the trust, that they had been

20· ·transferred to the living trust, and that they could

21· ·not exercise that option on behalf of the estate.

22· · · · ·Q.· ·Did you ever come to a conclusion

23· ·whether Ellen and Margaret Cotter could exercise the

24· ·option you just referenced?

25· · · · ·A.· ·The one that was in Jim Cotter, Sr.'s
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·1· ·estate?

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·Well, let's do this.· Let's -- instead

·3· ·of not knowing if we're referring to the same one,

·4· ·let me back up and ask a couple questions.

·5· · · · · · · Do you recall there came a time when

·6· ·Ellen and Margaret Cotter purporting to act as

·7· ·executives of the estate of Jim Cotter, Sr.,

·8· ·undertook to exercise a supposed option to acquire

·9· ·100,000 shares of class B voting stock?

10· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

11· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Objection.· Argumentative.

12· ·BY MR. KRUM:

13· · · · ·Q.· ·So I'm just going to call that the

14· ·100,000 dollar -- excuse me.· I'm going to call that

15· ·the 100,000 share option.· We can drop the word

16· ·"suppose" so we have a handy short point of

17· ·reference.

18· · · · · · · Does that work for you, Mr. Kane?

19· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

20· · · · ·Q.· ·Now, did you ever -- what did you do to

21· ·come to a conclusion -- strike that.

22· · · · · · · Did you ever come to a conclusion

23· ·whether Ellen and Margaret Cotter as executors of

24· ·the Estate of Jim Cotter, Sr., had the right to

25· ·exercise the 100,000 share option?
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·1· · · · ·A.· ·The committee did.

·2· · · · ·Q.· ·When did that occur?

·3· · · · ·A.· ·I'm having difficulty, because there's

·4· ·two sets of options, their personal options and the

·5· ·estate and which came when, because there were both

·6· ·issues presented to the committee.

·7· · · · · · · And I think -- I know there was some

·8· ·meeting in September of 2015, and I don't -- I think

·9· ·those were the Estate's options.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·By which you mean what we're going to

11· ·call the 100,000 share option?

12· · · · ·A.· ·Yes, yes.

13· · · · ·Q.· ·Well, as to you personally, Mr. Kane,

14· ·what did you do to reach a conclusion with respect

15· ·to the question of whether Ellen and Margaret Cotter

16· ·as executors of the estate of Jim Cotter, Sr., had

17· ·the right to exercise the 100,000 share option?

18· · · · ·A.· ·I asked for a legal opinion.

19· · · · ·Q.· ·And I don't want to repeat everything

20· ·you've already told me.

21· · · · · · · You're referring to the Greenberg

22· ·Traurig opinion you discussed earlier?

23· · · · ·A.· ·I believe that's correct, yes.

24· · · · ·Q.· ·And you also mentioned Mr. Brockmeyer.

25· · · · · · · Did you seek his advise with respect to
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·1· ·the 100,000 share option?

·2· · · · ·A.· ·I think -- I may be confused, but I

·3· ·think his advice had to do with -- I may have turned

·4· ·it around, but I think his advice had to do with

·5· ·their exercise of their own B options.

·6· · · · ·Q.· ·Did you understand in September of 2015

·7· ·that Greenberg Traurig was counsel of record in this

·8· ·case, the derivative case for the company?

·9· · · · ·A.· ·Yes.

10· · · · ·Q.· ·Did you ever hear or learn or were you

11· ·ever told that Greenberg Traurig had previously

12· ·provided an opinion, the subject matter of which was

13· ·who had the right to vote what shares at the 2015

14· ·annual shareholders meeting?

15· · · · ·A.· ·I can't recall.

16· · · · ·Q.· ·Do you recall ever hearing or learning

17· ·or being told that that was an issue or a potential

18· ·issue?

19· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Objection.· Vague.

20· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· Repeat that,

21· ·please.

22· ·BY MR. KRUM:

23· · · · ·Q.· ·Were you ever -- did you ever hear or

24· ·learn or were you ever told that there was a

25· ·question or were questions regarding who, if anyone,
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·1· ·had the authority to vote certain class B voting

·2· ·stock at or in connection with the 2015 RDI annual

·3· ·shareholders meeting?

·4· · · · · · · MR. SEARCY:· Objection.· Vague.

·5· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I knew there were

·6· ·objections or at least controversy regarding the

·7· ·vote of certain shares there.

·8· ·BY MR. KRUM:

·9· · · · ·Q.· ·What was your understanding as to what

10· ·the objections or controversies were?

11· · · · ·A.· ·My understanding was that certain shares

12· ·remained in the name of Jim Cotter, Sr., and -- and

13· ·therefore, should be -- belong to the Estate, had

14· ·not been transferred.

15· · · · · · · And I was told that there was some

16· ·litigation about it in Nevada but that it turned --

17· ·it was either an opinion -- there must have been an

18· ·opinion or an agreement that those shares could be

19· ·voted by Ellen and Margaret.

20· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· Mark, it's a little after

21· ·1:00.· We've got to get something to eat.

22· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· Yeah.· We'll break shortly.

23· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· How long?

24· · · · · · · MR. KRUM:· We'll see.

25· · · · · · · MR. FERRARIO:· Well, it's supposed to
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From: James J. Cotter
To: 'Guy Adams'; 'Kane'; Trim Storey'
CC: 'Ellen Cotter; 'Margaret Cotter; wgould @troygould.com; 'McEachern, Doug (US - Retired)'
Sent: 9/21/2015 4:12:49 PM
Subject: Estate's Exercise of Class B Options

With the Nevada Court's decision on Friday denying the partial distribution of Reading stock from the Estate to the
Trust as premature, Ellen and Margaret as Executors of the Estate may revive their prior attempt to exercise the stock
options for 100,000 shares of Class B Voting Stock using shares of Class A Non- Voting Stock held in the name of
James J. Cotter, Sr. If this is the case, the Company should not authorize such exercise for a number of reasons.

First, it is apparent under the circumstances that Ellen and Margaret seek to exercise this option to obtain control of
the Company through the Estate. This exercise obviously is sought now so that it is effective before the October 6th
record date and in anticipation of the 2015 Annual Shareholders Meeting on November 10. As a general matter, there
is no economic justification for exercising now an in-the -money stock option that expires in 2017. More particularly
according to Ellen and Margaret, this is especially so for the Estate, which they have represented to the court needs to
preserve assets to pay estate taxes. Under these and other circumstances with which we all are familiar, any approval
by the Company of the exercise of this option is likely to be understood to have been given to allow Ellen and
Margaret to obtain or retain control of the Company through the 2015 Annual Shareholders Meeting.

From the perspective of the Company, there is no legitimate basis to allow Class A Non -Voting Stock to be used as
consideration for the exercise. By accepting Non -Voting Stock, there is no benefit at all received by the Company. On
the contrary, the Company is reducing the float of the non- voting stock, which our CFO has indicated we should look to
increase. Also, the Company is obligated to ensure that all necessary documentation exists before allowing such
exercise, including that there exists an option agreement signed by the Company and optionee.

Second, in the past, when I tried to exercise my non -voting stock options, I was told that my exercise had to be
approved by the full Board as the Compensation Committee was no longer prepared to make decisions relating to the
exercise of the Cotters' stock options given the litigation. Now, with Ellen and Margaret wanting to exercise stock
options, the Compensation Committee recognizing the implications of its decision has recently reversed course and
will make the decisions relating to the Cotters' exercise of their stock options. It is easy to infer from this reversal that
it is being done so that approval is guaranteed for Ellen and Margaret.

Also, in the past, Guy Adams as a member of the Compensation Committee voted to prevent me from exercising my
plain vanilla employee stock options (some of which were set to expire) in the month prior to quarter end as it was not
best corporate practice as insiders might have a good idea of the earnings for the quarter and therefore would be in
receipt of material, inside information. Well, here we are a week before quarter end and in a blackout period called by
the very insider and principal proponent of Project Kid which was the basis for the blackout looking to exercise such
stock options. Guy's stated analysis in electing not to approve my prior request to exercise options obviously requires
disapproval of this request, unless his stated rationale was a ruse and in fact he is making decisions based solely on
whether they benefit Ellen and Margaret and/or harm me.
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